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Details of the students who were killed 
 

1. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thambirasa Suganthini 
 Address: Alampil, Mullaithivu 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidhyalam 
 DOB:  18.02.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Famil details: 

  

N0 Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 V Thambirasa Father Business 02.11.1961 
02 Thambirasa Yukalista Mother Home maker 20.02.1968 
03 Thambirasa Siganthini The victim Student 18.02.1988 
04 Thambirasa Vijayasharmini Sister Student 21.12.1996 
05 Thambirasa Kayanthini Sister Student 20.12.2006 

 

 
Account from a relative: 
Mother: 

Suganthini is my eldest daughter. She was following GCE Advanced 
Level courses at Mullaithivu Mahavidhyalayam. She went to attend a 
leadership workshop. She left on a Thursday. On Monday Kfir 
bombers attacked the Vallipunam area. Yet, we did not think the 
location where our child was staying will be attacked. It would have 
been about 9.45am. The girl from our neighbourhood who also went 
to the workshop came home unharmed and told us that our daughter 
was killed in the Kfir attack. We immediately went to the 
Puthukkudiyiruppu hospital and found the body of our daughter with 
injuries to her chest and waist. This government has killed so many 
civilians including many students. 

 

 
 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 4 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Affidavit: 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 5 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Coroner’s Report 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 6 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

2. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Rasamohan Hamsana 
 Address: Alampil, Mullaithivu 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidhyalam 
 DOB:  29.05.2006  
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family details: 

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Thiraiveerasingam Rasamohan Father Business 30.08.1962 
02 Rasamohan Iruthayarani Mother Housewife 14.07.1954 
03 Rasamohan Kirushanthan Brother Student  10.08.1990 
04 Rasamohan Hamsana Victim Student  29-05-1989 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father:  

My daughter Hamsana went to participate in a leadership training course 
for the High school students. She was very intelligent and respectful of 
others. I have never been an obstacle to her decisions. On that day also I 
sent her for that training and was looking forward her return home. On 
14 August 2006, morning, the Sri Lankan air force Kfirs attacked the 
Vallipunam area. The news spread that the location where the school 
girls were participating in the leadership training was attacked by the 
Kfir jets. I was nervous and immediately left to search for my daughter.  
First I went to Puthukkudiyiruppu Government hospital and then to 
Ponnampalam private hospital. My daughter was not in these two 
hospitals. At last I went to Kilinochchi hospital and my daughter was 
there. She was injured in her head. At that time she was talking with me 
and with our relatives. On that night she stopped her talking and went 
into an unconscious state. After that night, she didn’t talk. Immediately 
doctors changed her to another unit in the hospital. No one was 
permitted to enter that place to see my daughter other than the doctors. 
At last we were informed that my daughter died at 10.40am on 16 
August. All my hopes were destroyed with her death. 
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3. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Santhiramohan Nivethika 
 Address: Alampil, Mullaithivu 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai.Semmalai M.V 
 DOB:  04.01.1989  
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Sivanadiyar Santhiramohan Father Government job 15.09.1956 
02 Santhiramohan Jeyaramani Mother Housewife 17.01.1965 

03 Santhiramohan  Kasthuri Sister Univercity 
student 

25.07.1984 

04 Santhiramohan  Nivethika Victim Student 04.01.1989 
05 Santhiramohan  Parath Brother Student 16.07.1990 
06 Santhiramohan Kritika Sister Student 24.07.1997 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father:  

My second daughter Nivethika was studing GCE Advanced Level in 
Mullaithivu Semmalai Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a 
Leadership workshop. We were not worried about her because we 
were confident of her safety. But the incident changed all that. My 
daughter died in the Kfir attack on 14 August 2006. My daughter 
Nevethika must have been died on the spot because her injuries were 
very gruesome. There were big injuries in her hand and neck. She has 
a promising future. She should have lived with us for many more 
years but they killed her at such a young age.  
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4. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Mahalingam Vasantharani 
 Address: Semmalai, Alampil, Mullaithivu 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai.Semmalai Mahavidhyalam 
 DOB:  23.05.1988  
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family detail:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Nakalingam Makalingam Father Farming 08.07.1946 
02 Makalingam Sarasvathy Mother Housewife 04.03.1951 
03 Makalingam Ravisankar Brother Farming 01.01.1972 
04 Makalingam Tharmeswary Sister Housewife 04.12.1976 
05 Makalingam Tharmeswaran Brother Government job 29.06.1979 
06 Makalingam Suthakaran  Brother Farming 10.07.1982 
07 Makalingam Kankatharan Brother Farming 05.09.1985 
08 Makalingam Vasantharani Victim Student 23.03.1988 
09 Makalingam Selvanayakam  Brother Farming 09.12.1969 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father:  

Vasantharani is my youngest daughter. At the time she was 18. She 
was following GCE Advanced Level in Semmalai School. One day 
she told me that a leadership workshop for the students was to be 
held in Vallipunam and she was also participating in that workshop. I 
also agreed to this and sent her to that workshop. Who would have 
known that the Kfir would attack that location? After the Sri Lankan 
Kfirs attacked the Vallipunam on 14 August 2006, my son 
Tharmeswaran told me around 11.00am that his sister was also killed 
in that attack. I couldn’t believe that my daughter was killed. They 
brought her body to our home at 4.00 pm. She was severely injured in 
her back. I was so very fond of her. They have killed my precious 
girl.  
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5. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Vyravamoorthy Kiruthika  
 Address: Semmalai, Alampil, Mullaithivu 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai.Semmalai Mahavidhyalam 
 DOB:  12.07.1987  
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family detail:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Vyraiya Vyravamoorthy Father Fishing; 08.12.1961 
02 Vyravamoorthy Pakkiyavathy Mother Home maker 08.09.1958 
03 Vyravamoorthy Samanthy Sister Home maker 26.07.1983 
04 Vyravamoorthy Kiruthika Victim Student 12.03.1987 
05 Vyravamoorthy Thuvarakan Brother Student 21.03.1990 
06 Vyravamoorthy Kaliyukan Brother student 13.06.1992 

 

Account from a relative 
Sister (Vyravamoorthy Samanthy): 

My sister Vyravamoorthy Kiruthika was following her GCE Advance 
level at Semmalai Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a leadership 
training workshop with her friends in Senchcholai complex in 
Vallipunam. After she went there, on 14 August 2006, the Sri Lankan 
Kfir jets attacked the Vallipunam area. It was about 10.00am, when I 
came to know that it came to the location, where my sister was 
attending the workshop and it was the target of the Kfir attack. 
Immediatly we went to search for her. Then we heard that Kiruthika’s 
dead body was lying in Mullaithivu hospital. We went to the hospital 
and found her body. There was a big injury in her head. My mother 
also was not at home at that time. She went to Jaffna teaching 
hospital for treatment and her health didn’t let her to travel. I couldn’t 
do anyhthing other than cry out loud. She was my only sister and she 
loved me a lot. I have lost her love.  
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6. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thamilvasan Nivethika  
 Address: 2nd ward Mulliyavalai  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mulliyavalai Vidyanantha Colloege 
 DOB:  02.12.1988  
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family detail:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Santhirasekaran  Thamivasan Father Died 1953 

02 Thamivasan Santhanayaki Mother Home maker 1955 
03 Thamivasan Naventhan Brother Student 1987 
04 Thamivasan Nivethika Victim Student 02.12.1988 

 

Account from a relative  
Aunt (Kanthasami Perinpanayaki):  

My niece Thamilvasan Nivethika was staying in my house and was 
following her studies. She was studying Biology in GCE Advance 
level at Mulliyavali Vidyanantha College. She was very clever and 
silent in her classes. She went with her friends to attend a leadership 
workshop. We hoped that she would return home after she finished 
her workshop. But instead we got the shocking news. On 14 August 
2006, one of Nivethika’s teachers told us that Sri Lankan Kfir jets 
attacked the Vallipunam area and our Nivethika also died in that 
attack in the early morning. On that day, evening, it was very dark 
when they brought her body to our home. There were injuries in her 
head and in her left leg. Her funeral was also held in my home. She 
should have lived many more years but she was killed by the 
government at this young age.  
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7. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Puvanasekaram Puvaneswary  
 Address: 1st Ward Mulliyavalai  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mulliyavalai Vidyanantha Colloege 
 DOB:  06.06.1989  
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single  

 
 

Family Details:  
 

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Iyanar Puvanasekaram Father Business 02.06.1963 
02 uvanasekaram Sakunthala Mother Home maker 01.09.1972 
03 uvanasekaram Puvaneswary Victim Student  06.06.1989 
04 uvanasekaram Piratheepan Brother Student  12.01.1992 
05 uvanasekaram Jeyatharsan Brother Student  03.11.1995 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My daughter Puvanasekaram Puvaneswary is our eldest daughter. 
She was studying at Mulliyavalai Vidyanantha College. She was 
following her GCE advance level in Arts division. My daughter was 
very clever in studies and sports. She was a very kind girl. She went 
to Vallipunam to attend a leadership workshop. Who thought at that 
time that this would happen to them? The government killed them by 
its air force. There were injuries in all parts of her body. Who can 
give me my daughter back? How I brought her up like a precious 
thing.  I never thought that I would lose her so soon.  
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8. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thuraisingam Thisani  
 Address: Semmalai, Alampil,   

  Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu  Semmalai  

  Mahavidyalayam    
 DOB:  06.02.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single  

 

Family Details:   
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Palani Thuraisingam  Father Died 1950 
02 Thuraisingam Kanakamani Mother Home maker 07.02.1954 
03 Thuraisingam Krishnaverni Sister Home maker 08.04.1978 
04 Thuraisingam Thusenthiran Brother Business 22.01.1980 
05 Thuraisingam Tharany Sister Student 29.01.1985 
06 Thuraisingam Thisani Victim Student  06.02.1988 

 

Account from a relation: 
Mother:  

I am a widow. I let her to continue her studies even though we are 
poor and facing a difficult family situation. She often told me that she 
would look after me after she finishes her studies and finds a good 
job. My daughter Thusani was studying at Semmalai 
Mahavidyalayam and was following GCE Advance level. She told 
me that a leadership workshop was organised by the schools and she 
also was to participate in the workshop. I accepted and sent her to 
attend the workshop. It was a few days after she left for the 
workshop, on August 2006, a girl who escaped from the Kfir attack 
told us that Thusani was injured in the Kfir attack when it raided 
Vallipunam, that morning. Immediately I went to Tharmapuram 
hospital and saw my daughter. She couldn’t talk with me. She went 
into an unconscious state. There was a big injury in her stomach. 
Three fingers were missing in her left hand. We hoped that she would 
survive the horrible injuries. But she left this world.  
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9. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Veerasingam Raajitha  
 Address: 5th ward, Kumulamunai 

  Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu  Kumulamunai M.V 
 DOB:  28.02.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family Details:    

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Mayilvahanam Veerasingam  Father Farming 01.10.1950 
02 Veerasingam Alakamma Mother Home maker 26.02.1953 
03 Veerasingam Jeyaranjan  Brother London 11.09.1978 
04 Veerasingam Jeevaranjan Brother India 25.11.1982 
05 Veerasingam Raajitha Victim Student 28.02.1988 

 

Account from a relative 
Father:  

I had only one daughter and she is the youngest one also. We were 
very fond of her. She was very kind with all. She was following Arts 
division in GCE Advance level at Kumulamunai Mahavidyalayam. 
She was very clever in her classes. She went to Vallipunam just to 
attend a leadership workshop. All of her friends were also to attend 
the workshop, so I didn’t want to stop her from attending the 
workshop. In the morning, on 14 August 2006, I knew that Kfir 
fighter jets were attacking, but I didn’t know where it was. It was 
about 10.00am, one of Raajitha’s friend who also attend the 
workshop but escaped injury came to my in a much tensed state and 
told me that Raajitha was also killed in the Kfir attack in the morning. 
My wife also was not with me at the time. She had gone to Vavuniya. 
Immediately after I heard the news I went to the hospital. I could see 
only seen my daughter’s dead body. There were no other children 
with us to look after me and my wife. Our other two children are in 
overseas. Now, we have to lead a lonely life.  



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 33 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Affidavit:  

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 34 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Coroner’s Report 

 
 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 35 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Certificate of Death 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 36 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

10. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Suntharam Anoja  
 Address: Kumulamunai  Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mulliyavali  Vidyanantha  

 College    
 DOB:  12.09.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family Details:    

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Erampu Suntharam Father Died 28.10.1953 
02 Suntharam Anchanathevi Mother Sewing 05.04.1953 
03 Suntharam Anusiya Sister Home maker 06.11.1984 
04 Suntharam Anuraj Brother Student 26.05.1987 
05 Suntharam Anoja Victim Student 12.09.1989 
06 Suntharam Anojan Brother Student 04.01.1991 
07 Suntharam Anutheep Brother Student 20.01.1995 

 
Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

I had five children. Daughter Anoja was the third one. My husband 
also died due to illness. I brought up my children alone and amidst 
poverty. Anoja was loved by all. She was also very kind. All of my 
relatives called her the ‘Lotus bud’. She was very intelligent. She was 
studying GCE Advance Level in Vidyanantha College. She went with 
all of her friends to attend a leadership workshop. It was a few days 
after she left to attend the workshop. She was killed in the morning 
when the Kfir attacked their location, on 14 August 2006. We didn’t 
hear about it as soon it happened. We heard about it from the girls 
who escaped injury. They told us that Anoja was alive with some 
injuries. But by about 12.00am, we were informed by school 
administration that Anoja succumbed to her injuries. They brought 
her body that evening. There were injuries to all parts of her body. 
She was killed brutally by this government.  
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11. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Santhakumar Sukirtha  
 Address: 7th Ward, Kumulamunai  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Kumulamunai M.V  
 DOB:  08.08.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single  

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Kanthaiya Santhakumar Father Farming 1960 
02 Santhakumar; Malarvily Mother Home maker 1963 
03 Santhakumar Vinotharan Brother Frace 1983 
04 Santhakumar Vitheepa Sister Univercity 04.05.1984 
05 Santhakumar Sukirtha Victim Student 08.08.1987 
06 Santhakumar Brother Student 1992 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father:  

My daughter Sukirtha is very pretty. She was very kind with all. She 
was following GCE Advance Level in Kumulamunai 
Mahavidyalayam. She went with other students to attend a leadership 
workshop. A few days after they went to the workshop, Sri Lankan 
Air force attacked the Vallipunam area on 14 August 2006. I heard 
the news about 9.00am. I left to find out about my daughter’s 
situation. They said that she was admitted at Puthukudiyiruppu 
private hospital. Immediately I went there, but....I could only see my 
daughter’s lifeless body. There were injuries in her head, neck, and 
right leg. After her death her mother also is mentally affected. Now 
she is in a bad condition.  
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12. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Uthayakumaran Kousika  
 Address: Kumulamunai, Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Kumulamunai M.V  
 DOB:  22.08.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Somasuntharam Uthayakumar Father Business 15.11.1960 
02 Uthayakumar Parkiyaladsumy Mother Home maer 24.04.1962 
03 Uthayakumar Kowsika Victim Student  22.08.1987 
04 Uthayakumar Dilojika Sister Student 19.01.1999 

 

Account from a relative: 
Mother:  

I have two daughters. Kowsika is my eldest daughter. My daughters 
are very clever in their classes. Kowsika was following GCE 
Advance level in Kumulamunai Mahavidyalayam. She went with 
other students on a vehicle to attend a leadership workshop. We were 
shocked when we heard that the Sri Lankan Kfir jets targeted the 
location where my daughter was attending the workshop and the 
bombs killed many students in that complex on 14 August 2006. 
Immediately I left with my husband to search for Kowsika. We saw 
her at Puthukkudiyiruppu hospital. My daughter was with some 
injuries. After she saw us, she kissed us and talked well. We were 
happy that she escaped with injuries. But the next morning, she went 
into an unconscious state. Immediately we called the doctor and he 
checked her. At last, the doctor told us that she had died just a few 
minutes ago. It has left me in an unbearable misery.   
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13. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Nallapillai Ninthuya  
 Address: Kumulamunai, Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Kumulamunai M.V  
 DOB:  03.03.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Sabapathy Nallapillai Father Farming 03.05.195 
02 Nallapillai Kamaleswary Mother Home maker 31.08.1956 
03 Nallapillai Navanithy Sister London 12.10.1979 
04 Nallapillai Narmala Sister Jaffna Univercity 16.11.1981 
05 Nallapillai Ninthuja Victim Student  03.03.1988 
06 Nallapillai Navitha Sister Died 30.12.1985 
07 Nallapillai Vijitha Sister Kanada 27.05.1977 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

Ninthusa is my youngest daughter. I loved her so much. She was 
studying GCE Advance Level at Kumulamunai Mahavidyalayam. 
She told me that the school administration organised a workshop, and 
all of her friends were also ready to attend in the workshop. She 
asked my permission to attend the workshop. I consented believing 
that it will benefit her. Then on 14 August 2006, at 7.30 am the Kfir 
fighter jets were attacking Puthukudiyiruppu. I was wondering about 
the location where those jets were attacking. On that day at noon 
Ninthuja’s teachers and students told me that my daughter was killed 
in that Kfir attack. In the evening they brought her body home. She 
was badly injured in her neck and her back. The government 
deliberately killed my daughter and the other students. 
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14. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Kiritharan Dayani  
 Address: Thaneroottu, Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu,Vidyanantha College  
 DOB:  28.12.1988 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Balasuntharam Kiritharan  Father Labour  28.10.1968 
02 Kiritharan  Rajintha Mother Home maker 26.08.1972 
03 Kiritharan Dayani Victim Student 28.12.1989 
04 Kiritharan  Thiviya Sister Student 09.05.1991 
05 Kiritharan  Darmini Sister Student 07.09.1992 
06 Kiritharan  Kiyakanth Brother Student 25.11.1993 
07 Kiritharan  Kishokanth Brother Student 18.02.1997 
08  Kiritharan Katheeskanth Brother  Student 19.01.1999 
09 Kiritharan  Thipikka Sister Student 31.01.2000 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

I cannot even utter words to the effect that my daughter is not with 
me. I want Dayani, my daughter, back. She always made me happy 
by her funny talks. She was a very intelligent and always keen to 
learn about the new things. She spends a lot of time searching for 
more information on anything.  She was studying at Mullaithivu 
Vidyanantha College. She went just to attend a leadership workshop. 
I didn’t think that, that is where she was going to die. When we heard 
that the Kfir attacked the workshop complex we left to search for her. 
She was with injuries in the hospital. After we saw her, they changed 
her to another unit. We were not admitted to enter that room. We 
were praying for our daughter. At 11.00pm the doctors said that she 
had died. Now I’m suffering without seeing her and without talking 
with her.  
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15. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Kubenthirachelvam Likitha  
 Address: Puliyampokkanai   

  Kalveddithidal  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Paramanthanaru M.V 
 DOB:  05.02.1987 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Ponnambalam Kubenthirachelvam Father Labour 09.07.1963 
02 Kubenthirachelvam Inthirathevy Mother Home maker 03.03.1966 
03 Kubenthirachelvam Vijitha Sister Married 10.06.1983 
04 Kubenthirachelvam Likitha Victim Student 05.02.1987 
05 Kubenthirachelvam Puveethan Brother Student 27.10.1989 
06 Kubenthirachelvam ;Kethusan Brother Student 08.10.1993 
0 7 Kubenthirachelvam; Kajoothan Brother; Student 06.05.1995 

 
 

Account from a relative:  
Mother: 

My draught was studying in Piramanthanaru Mahavidyalayam. She 
was following her GCE Advance level. She went to Vallipunam to 
attend a leadership workshop. There the Sri Lankan government 
killed her by aerial bombardment. First we didn’t know that the 
Kfirs’ targeted the location of the leadership workshop. We came to 
know only after my daughter’s friends came and told us. Immediately 
we went to hospital where we saw our daughter’s dead body. She was 
severely injured in her chest.  How can I describe how we felt at that 
moment?   
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16. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Rasanthiram Makilvathani  
 Address: Hospital quaters, Tharmapuram

  Kalveddithidal  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Tharmapuram M.V   
 DOB:  04.12.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details: 

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Valli Rasasenthiram Father - 18.05.1948 
02 Rasasenthiram Makeswary  Died  18.08.1953 
03 Rasasenthiram; Kanthrooby Sister Nurse 26.08.1973 
04 Rasasenthiram Kantharasan Sister - 09.05.1975 
05 Rasasenthiram Kantharajani Sister Nurse 31.05.1977 
06 Rasasenthiram Kanthalatha Sister - 25.07.1979 
07 Rasasenthiram Kantharooban Brother - 30.05.1981 
08 Rasasenthiram Kanthavimala Brother - 21.01.1983 
09 Rasasenthiram Kanthaverny Sister Student 12.02.1985 
10 Rasasenthiram Mathivathani Sister Student 28.01.1987 
11 Rasasenthiram Makilvathani Victim Student 04.12.1988 
12 Rasasenthiram Inthumathy Sister Student 28.10.1990 
13 Rasasenthiram Venusanthan Brother Student 26.07.1992 
14 Rasasenthiram Kanthatheepan Brother Student 06.06.1994 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father:  

My daughter, Makilvathani was following her GCE Advance Level in 
Tharumapuram Mahavidyalayam. She said that the Education Departments 
and school administrations organised a Leadership workshop and also she 
wished to attend the workshop. I permitted her and sent her for the 
workshop. I knew that Sri Lankan Kfir fighter jets were attacking 
Puthukudiyiruppu. But, I didn’t know that it was the location where those 
students were attending the workshop. After few minutes, vehicles and 
motorbikes were speedily travelling with inured girls. Then only I knew 
that Kfirs attacked the workshop complex in Vallipunam. I was nervous. I 
went to search for her with the help of our neighbour. There the dead bodies 
of the girls were placed in a line. I saw my daughter’s dead body in the 
lines. She was injured in her head and neck. I brought up my children with 
great difficulties without my wife. Her death is very hard for me to bear. 
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17. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Neelayinar Nivakini 
 Address: Hospital road, Tharmapuram  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Tharmapuram M.V  
 DOB:  04.04.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Neelajinar Father Farming 23.07.1942 
02 Neelajinar Saraswathy Mother Home maker 18.10.1953 
03 Neelajinar Neelaverny Sister Student 10.02.1987 
04 Neelajinar Nivakini Victim Student 04.04.1989 
05 Neelajinar Thayani Sister Student 08.08.1990 
06 Neelajinar Nirooban Brother Student 27.04.1993 
07 Neelajinar Sritharan Brother Married 18.04.1977 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother 

My daughter Nivahini is cleverer than my other children. She is an 
active girl who will not waste her time. She was studying at 
Tharmapuram School. She will not go out to places that much. She 
would not have gone to the workshop at the Senchcholai complex. 
She went because most of her friends were also going. Sri Lankan 
Kfirs bombarded the Senchcholai complex on 14 August 2006. I did 
not think my daughter would come to any harm. While I was busy 
with housework that morning one of the girls who escaped injuries 
came rushing and informed me that Nivahini was killed in the Kfir 
attack. I went and called my husband who was working in the fields 
and both of us went to Kilinochchi hospital. There many of the girls 
including our daughter were lying as dead bodies. Our daughter had a 
huge injury on her neck. We have built a small memorial for her at 
our home. 
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18. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Varatharasa Mankaleswary  
 Address: Tharumapuram East,   

  Tharumapuram  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Tharmapuram M.V 
 DOB:  24.07.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Varatharasa Father Died 07.08.1949 
02 Varatharasa Sivapakkiyam Mother Home maker 15.03.1969 
03 Varatharasa Makaleswaran  Brother Labour 02.03.1987 
04 Varatharasa Makaleswary Victim Student 24.07.1989 
05 Varatharasa Mankayatkarasy Sister Student 05.10.1991 
06 Varatharasa Mayoory Sister Student 09.01.1995 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

I lost my husband also. I was struggled a lot to educate my daughter 
Makeswary. I was praying for a bright future for her. She was 
studying at Tharmapuram Mahavidyalayam. She went to Vallipunam, 
Senchcholai complex with her friends to participate in a leadership 
workshop. I hoped that she would return home safely. On 14 August 
2006, Sri Lankan Kfir fighter jets attacked Vallipunam. After the 
attack the news spread that the school girls who gathered together to 
attend a workshop were targeted by the Kfirs. Also I heard that many 
girls were killed and injured by the attack.  I ran towards the 
Senchcholai complex. Some of the girls who escaped from the attack 
said that my daughter was injured and was transported to Kilinochchi 
hospital. I went to the hospital. I searched her there. Then I went to 
the site where some dead bodied were kept together. In that site I 
found my daughter’s body.  I never thought that I would lose my 
daughter this soon. I need her love. But, the government killed her 
brutally.  
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19. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Vijayabavan Sinthuka   
 Address: Thoddiyady Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V  
 DOB:  24.05.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:   

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 V Vijayabavan Father Farming 16.05.1964 
02 Vijayabavan Vijayaladsumi Mother Home maker 20.02.1967 
03 Vijayabavan Sinthuka  Victim Student 24.04.1988 
04 Vijayabavan Kowsikka Sister Student  28.02.1990 
05 Vijayabavan Bavanukka Sister Student 16.06.1992 
06 Vijayabavan Bavathuka Sisterp Student 16.06.1991 
07 Vijayabavan Sinthujan Brother Student 25.05.1996 
08 Vijayabavan Sobika Sister Student 07.05.1997 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

Sinthuka is my eldest daughter. She was following GCE Advance 
Level in Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. She went with other students 
to attend a leadership workshop in Vallipunam. I knew that the Sri 
Lankan Kfir fighter jets bombarded in Puthukudiyiruppu. I think.., it 
was about 9.00am, I heard that Kfirs dropped the bombs into the 
complex where the school girls were attending the workshop. 
Immediately my husband who was planting in our vegetable garden, 
left to search our daughter. At about 2.00pm my husband returned 
home. His face said the whole story. He started to cry when I asked 
about our daughter. At 4.00pm they brought my daughter’s dead 
body home. She was inured in the stomach.   
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20. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Nakalinkam Theepa  
 Address: Puthadi, Visuvamadu east 

Visuvamadu Kalveddithidal  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V  
 DOB:  29.03.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 V Nakalingam  Father Business 16.11.1962 
02 Nakalingam Vijayakumari Mother home maker 29.04.1966 
03 Nakalingam Theepa Victim Student 29.03.1987 
04 Nakalingam Nisanthan Brother Student 15.10.1988 
05 Nakalingam Sivaroopan Brother Student 03.04.1990 

 

Account from a relative:  
Father:  

Nagalingam Theepa is my eldest daughter. I loved her so much. She 
is pretty and clever.  She was following GCE Advance Level in 
Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a leadership 
workshop for the students. She died on 14 August 2006 in the aerial 
bombardment of the Sri Lankan Kfir in Vallipunam. I went to 
Senchcholai complex in Vallipunam after I heard the news. I could 
only see her dress soaked in blood. There was no body. That the Kfir 
man dropped the bomb on her and we couldn’t even have her body.  
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21. Details of the victim: 

 Full name: Arulampalam Jasothini  
 Address: Puthadi Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mulllaithuvu Visuvamadu M.V  

   
 DOB:  18.01.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Sinnathampy Arulampalam  Father Farming 08.05.1942 
02 Arulampalam Gnanampikai Mother Home maker 07.06.1945 
03 Arulampalam Vigneswaran Brother Married 30.09.1965 
04 Arulampalam Kodeeswaran Brother Married 11.04.1972 
05 Arulampalam Machula Sister Married 23.09.1974 
06 Arulampalam Bathmarani Sister Married 05.04.1972 
07 Arulampalam Puspalatha Sister Married 10.01.1977 
08 Arulampalam Selvakumaran Brother Student 14.06.1979 
09 Arulampalam Jasothini Victim Student 18.01.1988 

 
Account from a relative  
Mother:  

My daughter Arulampalam Jasothini is the youngest one. She is only 
an 18 year old when that incident occurred. I was very fond of her. 
She was following her advance level in Visuvamadu 
Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a workshop with her friends. I 
didn’t think that it would happen. We knew that Sri Lankan Kfri jets 
attacked the Puthukudiyiruppu area. But, I didn’t expect that my 
daughter would be killed in that attack. At about 2.00pm two men 
came to our house and asked me whether this was Jasothini’s house. I 
said yes. Then they continued to tell me that my daughter was also 
killed in the Kfir attack.  After a few hours they brought my 
daughter’s body as it was laid in a coffin. The coffin was kept closed. 
They said that a bomb exploded near her and therefore her body was 
in a bad state. The Sri Lankan government is the one that killed my 
beloved daughter. I want my daughter back.  
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22. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thirunavukkarasu Niranchala  
 Address: Puthadi Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mulllaithuvu Visuvamadu M.V

  
 DOB:  29.11.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:   
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Palanimuthu Thirunavukarasu Father Farming 19.09.1955 
02 Thirunavukarasu Pakkiyalili Mother Home maker 16.12.1963 
03 Thirunavukarasu Sureshmohanaraj Brother Farming 04.01.1985 
04 Thirunavukarasu Vijitharan Brother - 01.04.1985 
05 Thirunavukarasu Sreethran Brother Student 14.03.1987 
06 Thirunavukarasu Niranchini Sister Student 29.11.1988 
07 Thirunavukarasu Niranchala Victim Student 29.11.1988 

 

Account from a relative:  
Twin sister: 
My sister Niranchala and I are twins. We usually act in the same manner. 
I think, as far as I know, we never have been separated. We both went to 
Senchcholai complex to attend a leadership workshop. There we took 
some physical exercises in the mornings and attended some practical and 
theory classes about leadership. On the day, morning, on 14 August 
2006, we bathed and were ready to take tea. Then we heard the Kfirs 
sound. Before we could alert all our friends, the Kfirs dropped bombs on 
our complex. It was like a terrible lightening and thundering. We lay 
down in the ground. At the time also, my sister and I lay next to each 
other. I got up and woke up sister after the Kfir left the area. She was 
bleeding profusely. I called out to her. There was no answer or any sound 
from her. There was no move in her body. I was nervous and I cried 
loudly. I heard many other voices crying out and asking to be picked up. 
At that time two youths came near me tried to clam me down. It was only 
then I felt the injury in my neck and in my leg. They brought me to 
hospital. It was only after I got well I started to feel the loss of my twin 
sister. This Sri Lankan government separated us two who have been 
together ever since our birth. I’m lonely without my sister. Now 
whenever I hear the Kfir noise I feel those moments of pain and misery at 
the Senchcholai complex.  
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23. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Nahalingam Kokila   
 Address: Keechidapuram Neeravipiddy, 

Mulliyavalai  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu M.V  
 DOB:  12.02.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Sittampalma  Nakalingam Father Farming 26.04.1958 
02 Nakalingam Amirthapuspam Mother Died  18.05.1962 

03 Nakalingam Karunakaran Brother Jewellary sop 16.06.1984 
04 Nakalingam G];gyjh Sister Nurse  02.05.1985 
05 Nakalingam Nfhfpyh Victim Student  12.02.1987 

06 Nakalingam jahfud;; Brother Student  07.03.1989 
 

Account form a relative:  
Sister (Nakalingam Puspalatha): 

My sister Kokila was staying in Barathy children home in 
Vallipunam. She was studying in Udayarkaddu Mahavidyalayam. 
She went to attend a workshop in Vallipunam Senchcholai complex. 
On the morning, at about 10.00am I heard about the Kfir attack but I 
was not too concerned about that. That night, two staff from the 
Children Home nearby came to our home and said my sister was also 
killed in that Kfir attack. I was shocked. The next day morning they 
brought her body home. She was injured in her chest and head. I lost 
my favourite sister at such a young age. 
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24. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Selvam Nirojini  
 Address: Koolamurippu Oddusuddan  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Oddusuddan 

Mahavidyalayam    
 DOB:  17.09.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relation ship Occupation DOB 
01 Kanthaiya  Selvam Father Farming 14.11.1965 
02 Selvam Meripuspalatha Mother Home maker 13.09.1971 
03 Selvam Nisanthan Brother Student  04.10.1987 
04 Selvam Nirojini Victim Student 17.09.1989 
05 Selvam Thanusta Siste Student 25.05.1993 
06 Selvam Nirangan Brother Student 04.07.1997 
07 Selvam Kavithasan Brother Student 06.04.1998 

 

Account from a relative: 
Father: 

My daughter Nirojini was following GCE Advance Level in 
Oddusuddan Mahavidyalayam. She went with interest to attend a 
leadership workshop. But her curiosity and her wishes were not 
fulfilled. The Sri Lankan Kfir fighter jets killed her when she was 
attending the working. I didn’t know as soon the incident happened. 
On 14 August 2006, it was evening when I listened to the local radio 
news. Then only I came to know that the Kfirs attacked the location 
where my daughter was attending the workshop. Immediately I 
contacted the school administration. They said that my daughter was 
also killed by the Kfir attack. On the night, they brought my 
daughter’s dead body. She was badly injured in her head and right 
hand. Now I’m suffering a lot without seeing my daughter.  

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 86 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Affidavit 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 87 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Coroner’s Report 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 88 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

25. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Santhanam Sathiyakala  
 Address: Suthanthirapuram, Udayarkaddu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu M.V   
 DOB:  02.08.1986 
 Age (then): 20 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name  Relationship Occupation Age 
01 R Santhnam   Father Died 53 
02 Santhnam nry;tuzp Mother Home maker 52 
03 Santhnam Mohanakala Sister Labour 23 
04 Santhnam Santhakala  Sister  Labour 24 
05 Santhnam rrpfud;    Brother Labour 21 
06 Santhnam Sathiyakala Victim Student 20 
07 Santhnam Jeyakala Sister Labour 18 
08 Santhnam Vasanthakala Sister Student 16 
09 Santhnam Puspakala Sister Student 14 
10 Santhnam Vasanthakumar Brother  Student 13 
11 Santhnam Sukanthini Sister   Student 11 
 

Account from a relative:  
Sister (Vasanthakala)  

My elder sister Sathiyakala was studying at Udayarkaddu 
Mahavidyalayam. She was following GCE Advance Level. The 
school administration announced about the workshop. My sister also 
wished to attend the workshop and went with other students. On 14 
August 2006, we heard that the Kfir hit the location where the 
workshop was held. After a long time we were informed that my 
sister Sathiyakala was killed on the spot.  That evening we saw her 
dead body. She was severely injured in her all parts of the body. We 
lost one bird from our nest.  
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26. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Sanmuharasa Kaventhini  
 Address: Idaikkadu road, Vallipunam  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  07.06.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 S Sanmuharasa Father Farming 18.11.1947 
02 Sanmuharasa Rajesvary Mother Home maker 30.12.1962 
03 Sanmuharasa Koneswary Brother Married 16.11.1980 
04 Sanmuharasa Makileswary Sister Labour 23.09.1984 
05 Sanmuharasa Jeyaroobi Sister Home maker 15.04.1986 
06 Sanmuharasa Kaventhini Victim Student 07.06.1984 
07 Sanmuharasa Sobika Sister Student 31.07.1990 
08 Sanmuharasa Dokiyo Sister Student 29.12.1991 
09 Sanmuharasa Kantharooban Brother Married 17.05.1979 
10 Sanmuharasa Kantharoobi Sister Deid 16.11.1982 

 
Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My Daughter Kaventhini was studying in Udayarkaddu 
Mahavidyalayam. She was following her Advance level. She was 
very clever in her classes and sports. We never were an obstacle to 
her decisions. I sent her to attend the leadership workshop when she 
wished to participate. The Senchcholai complex where the workshop 
was held is a little far from our home. I went there and met her just 
one day before the Kfir attack. Soon after the Kfir attack, the injured 
girls were being carried in vehicles past by our home. I was searching 
for my daughter among the crowd of people. There was a lot of 
smoke and blood-stain. I returned home with empty hand. That 
evening they brought my daughter as a dead body. I would have 
never agreed for her to attend the workshop, if I had known that this 
would happen to her. 
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27. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Muthaiya Inthira   
 Address: Suthanthirapuram, Udayarkaddu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  26.08.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Muthaoya Father Farming 07.02.1952 
02 Muthaoya Madathi Mother  Home maker 07.02.1952 
03 Muthaoya Sajithkumar Brother Student 16.06.1982 
04 Muthaoya Suthajini Sister Student 24.05.1985 
05 Muthaoya Inthira Victim Student 26.08.1988 
06 Muthaoya Thineskumar Sister Student 08.08.1990 

 
Account from a relative  
Mother:  

Inthira is my third daughter. When she was studying in Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam, she went to attend the workshop. On 14 August 

2006, we heard that my daughter was killed by the Sri Lankan Kfir 

jets in Senchcholai complex. Soon after we knew this, we left to 

Kilinochchi hospital, and we found Inthira’s dead body and brought it 

home. She was a pleasant girl but now we can never watch her 

pleasant smile.  
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28. Details of the victim: 

 Full name: Balakrishnan Mathani   

 Address: Athar Planing Scheme,Vallipunam 

 Occupation: Student 

 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu M.V 

 DOB:  07.05.1988 

 Age (then): 18 

 Marital status: Single 

 

Family details:  
  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 

01 N Balakrishnan Father Not with the 

Family  

Aged 44 

02 Balakrishnan Santhiravathana Mother Died  09.01.1963 

03 Balakrishnan Malini Sister Accountant 02.02.1984 

04 Balakrishnan Mathani Victim Student 07.05.1988 

Account from a relative  

Sister (Malini):  

Our mother also is dead. Our father is living alone. We do not have 

any contact with him. My sister and I were living with our 

grandmother. We were studying in Udayarkaddu Mahavidyalayam. 

Then she went to attend a leadership workshop. On 14 August 2006 

early morning, when the Kfir attacked the location where they were 

attending the workshop, she was injured and she later succumbed to 

her injuries. Now I lost my only sister also. I’m living lonely with my 

grandmother.  
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29. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Sivamayajeyam Kokila  
 Address: Udayarkaddu South  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam 
 DOB:  28.02.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Mane Relationship Occupation DOB 

01 T Sivamayajeyam Father Farming 15.11.1961 
02 Sivamayajeyam Santha Mother  Home maker 07.05.1966 
03 Sivamayajeyam Jeyatharsini Sister Married 09.04.1982 

04 Sivamayajeyam Mekala Sister Labour 20.02.1985 
05 Sivamayajeyam Kokila Victim Student 28.02.1989 
06 Sivamayajeyam Umasankar Brother Student 12.06.1991 

 

Account from a relative 
Mother:  

My daughter Kokila was studying in Udayarkaddu Mahavidyalayam. 
She went to participate in a leadership workshop for the High school 
students. When she left to attend the workshop she said that she 
would return after 15 days. On 14 August 2006, morning, the Sri 
Lankan air force Kfirs attacked the Vallipunam area. The news 
spread that the location where the school girls were participating in 
the leadership workshop was attacked by the Kfir jets. I was nervous 
and immediately left to search for my daughter. I couldn’t find her. 
That evening her dead body was brought home by the school 
administration. This is nothing new to the Sinhala Government. This 
time my daughter was a victim.   
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30. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Kanakalingam Niruja  
 Address: Division A, Thevipuram 

Puthukudiyiruppu   
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam     
 DOB:  11.02.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
31. Details of the victim: 

 Full name: Kanakalingam Nirubha  
 Address: Division A, Thevipuram 

Puthukudiyiruppu   
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam  
 DOB:  11.02.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 

01 K Kanakalingam  Father Farming 30.10.1952 
02 Kanakalinkam Thavamani Mother  Home maker 05.8.1960 
03 Kanakalinkam Kajenthiran Brother Labour  13.08.1982 
04 Kanakalinkam Revathy Sister Labour 05.11.1985 
05 Kanakalinkam Nirubha Victim Student 11.02.1989 
06 Kanakalinkam Niruja  Victim Student       11.02.1989 
07 Kanakalinkam Anuja Sister Student   10.04.1990 

 

Account from a relative 
Father:  

On 14 August 2006 my two twin daughters were killed by the Kfir 
attack when they were in Senchcholai complex, attending a 
leadership workshop. They were studying in Udayarkaddu 
Mahavidyalayam. In that incident both my daughters were laid down 
together as dead bodies. I’m suffering a lot after their loss. This cruel 
Sri Lankan Government killed my two daughters in a one day.  

T
w

in
s;
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32. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Navarathinam Santhakumary  
 Address: Mayikunchu Settlement, Kaively 
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu 

Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  28.05.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Sebamali Navarathinam Father Died 25.01.1960 
02 Navarathinam Yohampal Mother  Home maker 27.10.1964 
03 Navarathinam Santhakumar Brother Labour 03.10.1984 
04 Navarathinam Santharoobi Sister Married 27.07.1986 
05 Navarathinam Santhakumari Victim Student 28.05.1988 

 

Account from a relative:  
Sister (Santharoobi) 

My elder sister Santhakumari was studying at Udayarkaddu 
Mahavidyalayam. She was following GCE Advance Level. The 
school administration announced about the workshop. My sister also 
wanted to attend the workshop and went with other students. On 14 
August 2006, we heard that the Kfir jets owned by the Sri Lankan 
government attacked the location where the workshop was held. Soon 
after we heard this my brother left to search for her. He returned 
home without our sister. After a long time we were informed that my 
sister Santhakumari was killed on the spot.  In the evening they 
brought her dead body to our home. She head was smashes in the 
back and her left hand was also missing. My brother was struggling a 
lot to educate her. We lost our favoured sister.  
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33. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Murukaiya Arudchelvi  
 Address: Suthanthirapuram Udayarkaddu   
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu M.V 
 DOB:  05.04.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 S Murukaiya Father Farming 18.10.1949 
02 Murukaiya etkzp Mother  Home maker 13.03.55 
03 Murukaiya Thiruchelvam Sister Labour 19.01.1983 

04 Murukaiya Thamilchelvy Sister Married 23.08.1980 
05 Murukaiya Kalichelvi Sister Student 02.04.1985 

06 Murukaiya Arudchelvi Victim Student      05.04.1988 
 

Account from relative:  
Mother: 

I had four daughters. Arudchelvy is my youngest daughter. At the 
time she was 18. We all loved her very much. She was following 
GCE Advanced Level in Udayarkaddu Mahavidyalayam. She went to 
participate in the workshop with other girls. Who would have known 
that Kfirs would attack that location? The Monday about 7.00 am the 
Sri Lankan Kfirs attacked Vallipunam. After a few hours, we came to 
know that the location where my daughter was has come under 
attack. I, a state of shock I left to search her. The injured girls were 
being transported to the hospitals. I also went to the hospital. There 
was a list, in which they placed the names of the injured girls. I 
searched my daughter’s name. Her name was not in it. Then I went to 
the site where the dead bodies were kept and there it was; my 
daughter’s dead body. I could only cry out loud. Then we brought her 
body to home and held her funeral.  
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34. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Tharmakulasingam Kemala  
 Address: Kannakinakar, Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai, Visuvamadu M.V 
 DOB:  09.09.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name relationship Occupation Age  
01 R Tharmahulasingam  Father - 50 
02 Tharmahulasingam Thavaladshumi Mother Home maker 41 
03 Tharmahulasingam Kalaimathy Sister Married 22 
04 Tharmahulasingam Kemalatha Sister Married 20 
05 Tharmahulasingam Kemala Victim Student 19 
06 Tharmahulasingam Thananchayan Brother Student 15 
07 Tharmahulasingam Tharmilan Brother Student 10 
08 Tharmahulasingam Tharmaseelan Brother Student 10 

 

Account from a relative 
Mother:  

My daughter Komala was studying in Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. 
She went to participate in a leadership workshop for the High school 
students on 10 August 2006. On the fourth day, morning, the Sri 
Lankan air force Kfirs attacked the Vallipunam area. The news 
spread that the location where the school girls were participating in 
the leadership workshop was attacked by the Kfir jets and many girls 
were killed in the attack. I was nervous and ran towards the school to 
know about my daughter. None of them were at the school. My niece 
came and told me that my daughter was also killed by the attack. That 
evening her dead body was brought home by the school 
administration. She was severely injured in her head. Why is the 
international community sitting back and watching this killed? If my 
daughter was alive we would have been happy. Now we lost 
everything.  
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35. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Kanapathipillai Nanthini   
 Address: Thodiyadi Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu 

Mahavidyalayam 
 DOB:  05.10.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 A Kanapathipillai Father Died  19.12.1932 
02 Kanapathipillai Navarathina malai Mother Labour 22.02.1941 
03 Kanapathipillai Sarojini Sister Deid 03.06.1968 
04 Kanapathipillai Kalaivani Sister Married 23.01.1966 
05 Kanapathipillai Srijeyaladsumi  Sister Married 11.06.1972 
06 Kanapathipillai Nakulaewary  Sister Married  21.07.1972 
07 Kanapathipillai Nagenthira  Sister - 23.11.1969 
08 Kanapathipillai Sri Vimalarai  Sister Teacher 16.08.1982 
09 Kanapathipillai Krishnaverni  Sister Deid 19.05.1981 
10 Kanapathipillai Krishnavel Sister - 02.10.1982 

11 Kanapathipillai Nanthini  Victim  Student  05.10.1988 
 
 

Account from a relative 
Father:  

My daughter Nanthini is my youngest daughter. She was studying in 
Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. She was very capable in sports and 
studies. On a Thursday, She went to attend a leadership workshop 
with her friends. On 14 August 2006, Monday morning, she was 
killed by the Sri Lankan air force Kfir attack. First we heard the news 
of our daughter’s death from our neighbours. I didn’t believe it. After 
a few hours they brought her dead body. Her left leg was severely 
crushed. How much we would have struggled to educate her. The Sri 
Lankan government destroyed it all.  
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36. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thampimuthu Thayalini   
 Address: Thodiyadi Visuvamadu   
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V 
 DOB:  19.05.1986 
 Age (then): 20 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 V Thampimuthu  Father Farming 17.04.1950 
02 Thampimuthu Nakeswary Mother Home maker 13.06.1953 
03 Thampimuthu Nirmalan Brother Farming 26.07.1977 
04 Thampimuthu Mohanthasan Brother Farming 14.01.1982 
05 Thampimuthu Kalaranjini Sister Student 16.01.1986 
06 Thampimuthu Thayalini Victim Student 15.05.1987 
07 Thampimuthu Thevaranjini Sister Student 18.06.1990 

 

Account from a relative: 
Mother:  

My daughter was injured the Vallipunam Kfir attack on 14 August 
2006. Then she was admitted in Kilinochchi hospital. She was 
changed to Vavuniya hospital for further treatment. Unexpectedly on 
28 September 2006, she died in Vavuniya hospital. Even if she was 
alive as disabled, we would have looked after her. But, now we lost 
her entirely. We faced a lot of problems to bring her body from 
Vavuniya to here. Then the court ordered to bring her dead body here 
on her father’s bail. After her body was brought home to hold the 
funeral rites the court ordered that her body must be sent back to 
Vavuniya for burial.  
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37. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Raveenthirarasa Ramja  
 Address: Thodoyadi Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V 
 DOB:  14.11.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 N Raveenthirarasa Father Died 01.08.1967 
02 Raveenthirarasa Thilakavathy Mother Labour 13.02.1968 
03 Raveenthirarasa Ramja Victim Student 14.11.1988 
04 Raveenthirarasa Thajalan Brother Student 29.03.1993 
05 Raveenthirarasa Ranuja  Sister Student 10.07.1995 
06 Raveenthirarasa Mithusan Brother Student 31.03.1998 
07 Raveenthirarasa Pirina Sister Student 04.5.2001 

  

Account from a relative: 
Mother:  

My daughter Ramja is my eldest daughter. She was following GCE 
Advanced Level courses at Mullaithivu Mahavidhyalayam. She went 
to attend a leadership workshop with her friends.  On Monday Kfir 
bombers attacked the Vallipunam, Senchcholai complex where 
hundreds of students were gathered together. We heard that she was 
admitted to the Kilinochchi hospital and my husband and I left on a 
motorbike to Kilinochchi. When we reached the hospital we heard 
that she had died. I shocked, my legs refused to walk. Then I saw my 
daughter’s dead body. She had injuries in her entire body. The 
government killed her at such a young age.  
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38. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Nakuleswaran Nisanthini  
 Address: Thoddiyadi Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V 
 DOB:  11.04.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Y Nakuleswaran Father Farming 02.02.1968 
02 Nakuleswaran Selvarani Mother Home maker 05.02.1968 
03 Nakuleswaran Nisanthini Victim Student 11.04.1989 

04 Nakuleswaran Nisanth Brother Student 23.09.1991 
05 Nakuleswaran Niroj Brother Student 02.04.1995 
06 Nakuleswaran Anojan Brother Student 02.03.1996 

07 Nakuleswaran Niroja Sister Student 15.09.1998 
08 Nakuleswaran Usanthini Sister Student 09.12.2000 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

Nanthini is my eldest daughter. I was extremely fond of her. She used 
to help her younger sisters with their studies. She took care of them. 
She had a good name among the school teachers. She was studying in 
Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a leadership 
workshop with her friends. On 14 August 2006, Monday morning, at 
about 7.30am the Sri Lankan air forces’ Kfirs attacked the 
Puthukudiyiruppu. At that time, I didn’t worry about my daughter. 
But my husband left to find out the situation. It was 12.00 noon; he 
returned home and said our daughter was also killed by the attack. I 
cried loudly. All our neighbours gathered in our home. After a few 
hours they brought her dead body. She was injured in her chest. We 
lost our eldest daughter.  
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39. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thampirasa Theeba  
 Address: Valluvarpuram, Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Visuvamadu M.V 
 DOB:  07.01.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occuation DOM 
01 V Thampirasa Father Farming 19.06.1959 
02 Thampirasa Ladshmi Mother Home maker 15.05.1959 
03 ThampirasaPirabakaran Brother - 19.05.1982 

04 Thampirasa Jeyakaran Brother Labour 23.03.1984 
05 Thampirasa Theeba Victim udent 07.01.1987 
06 Thampirasa Jeyarroban Brother udent 05.07.1990 
07 Thampirasa Subasini Sister udent 11.04.1992 
08 Thampirasa Suhanja Sister udent 02.05.1994 

  
  

Account from a relative :  
Brother( Jeyarooban):  

My Akka (sister) was following her GCE Advance level at 
Visuvamadu Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a leadership 
training workshop with her friends. On 14 August 2006, the Sri 
Lankan Kfir jets attacked the Vallipunam Senchcholai complex. It 
was about 9.00am, I came to know that the location, where my sister 
was attending the workshop was the target of the Kfir attack. 
Immediately my father who was working in our garden went to find 
out about my sister. It was 11.00am when he returned home and said 
she was killed with many other girls. That evening at about 4.00pm 
they brought her dead body home. She was badly injured in her neck 
and her leg. I can’t see my Akka anymore.  I can’t talk to her 
anymore.  
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40. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Tharmarasa Brintha 
 Address: Visuvamadu west, Visuvamadu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Murukanantha M.V 
 DOB:  06.01.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Ponnampalam Tharmarasa  Father Business 14.07.1961 
02 Tharmarasa Thanaldshumi Mother Home maker 17.02.1959 

03 Tharmarasa Brintha  Victim Student 06.01.1989 

04 Tharmarasa Kuhapriya Sister Student 18.01.1992 
05 Tharmarasa Jathursan Brother Student 09.10.1994 
06 Tharmarasa Thanapriyan Brother Student 09.03.1996 

 

Account from a relative 
Mother:  

Brintha is my eldest daughter. She was studying in Murukanantha 
Mahavidyalayam. She was studying Biology in her GCE Advance 
Level.  She went to Senchcholai complex to attend a leadership 
workshop. On 14 August 2006, the Kfir fighter jets attacked the 
location. Brintha was injured in her waist. They took her to hospital 
in a motorbike. But she died on the way to the hospital because of too 
much bleeding. How much we planned for her future, but the 
government has destroyed all our hopes.   
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41. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thevarasa Sarmini  
 Address: Periyakulam Kandavali  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Kilinochchi Murukanantha M.V 
 DOB:  09.03.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Ramupillai Thevarasa Father Business 04.03.1957 
02 Thevarasa  kNf];thp Mother Labour 28.04.1958 
03 Thevarasa Tharshini Sister Student 08.04.1985 
04 Thevarasa Tharsajini Sister Student 24.02.1987 
05 Thevarasa Sarmini Victim Student 09.03.1989 
06 Thevarasa Thamilini Sister Labour 20.04.1979 
07 Thevarasa Sujenthiran Brother Died 09.05.1980 
08 Thevarasa  Sutharshini Sister Labour 30.06.1982 

 

Account from a relative:  
Sister (Sutharsini): 

My younger sister Sarmini was studying in Murukanantha 
Mahavidyalayam. She went to attend a leadership workshop with her 
friends.  On that day, the Kfir bombers owned by the Sri Lankan Kfir 
fighter jets attacked the Vallipunam, Senchcholai complex. We never 
imagined that it would happen to my sister. My sister was admitted in 
the Kilinochchi hospital. We immediately went to the hospital. When 
we were there we heard that she had died. We felt a sense of gloom 
gripping us. Then we identified her dead body. She was injured all 
over her body.  
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42. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thampirasa Lakshiya  
 Address: Mullivaikkal Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai, Puthukudiyiruppu M.V 
 DOB:  26.03.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Thampirasa Father Farming 07.03.1948 
02 Thampirasa Kularani Mother Home maker 10.10.1962 
03 Thampirasa Tharsikan Brother Student 24.09.1983 

04 Thampirasa Ninthujan Brother Student 25.01.1986 
05 Thampirasa Lakshiya Victim; Student 26.03.1989 
06 Thampirasa Prinsiya Sister Student 24.05.1992 
07 Thampirasa Sowmiya Sister Student 11.06.1996 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My daughter was only 17 years old when the incident happened. She 
was studying in Puthukudiyiruppu Mahavidyalayam. She was 
following her Advance level. She was very clever in her classes and 
in sports. On a Thursday she left home to attend a leadership 
workshop in Senchcholai complex. On 14 August 2006, the school 
administration informed us that Lakshiya was killed by Kfir attack in 
the morning. We couldn’t believe that.  Then we went to the 
Kilinochchi hospital and identified her dead body and brought her 
body home. I am still grieving for her loss.  
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43. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Makalingam Vensidiyula  
 Address: Mullivaikkal west, Mullaithivi  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Puthukudiyiruppu  M.V 
 DOB:  07.10.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 S Makalingam  Father Labour 06.01.1963 
02 Makalingam Sahayamalar Mother Home maker 09.10.1958 
03 Makalingam Jeyarani Sisterr Studen 15.04.1985 
04 Makalingam Nesarajan Brother Studen 26.10.1987 
05 Makalingam Vesidiyula Victim Studen 07.10.1989 
06 Makalingam Nelasan Pirasath Brother Studen 26.02.1992 
07 Makalingam Charlsdevan Brother Studen 26.05.1994 

 

Account from a relative: 
Mother:  

My daughter Vesidijula was studying in Puthukudiyiruppu 
Mahavidyalayam. She was following GCE Advance Level. She went 
with other students to attend a leadership workshop in Vallipunam. 
We hoped that she would return safely. I knew that the Sri Lankan 
Kfir fighter jets bombarded Puthukudiyiruppu. Within a few minutes 
vehicles were carrying injured girls. I think…, it was about 9.00am, I 
came to know that the Kfirs dropped the bombs into the complex 
where the school girls were attending the workshop. When we went 
their, they said she was injured and admitted in Kilinochchi hospital. 
Immediately we went to the hospital. But, she was not in this world at 
that time, she had passed away. Doctors told us that she had died few 
minutes earlier. Then we brought her body to our home. I never 
hoped that my daughter will leave me this soon. 
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44. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thuraisingam Thutharshini  
 Address: 10th ward, Puthukudiyiruppu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Puthukudiyiruppu M.V 
 DOB:  28.07.1989 
 Age (then): 17 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name relationship Occupation DOB 
01 M Thuraisingam  Father Labour 24.12.1966 
02 Thuraisingam Saratha Mother Home maker 12.08.1970 
03 Thuraisingam Thutharshini Victim Student 28.07.1989 

04 Thuraisingam Mujanthan Brother Student 14.02.1991 
05 Thuraisingam Senthan Brother Student 23.04.1993 
06 Thuraisingam Thujikaran Brother Student 28.02.1994 
07 Thuraisingam Thuji Sister Student 14.04.1997 
08 Thuraisingam Viveka Sister Student 08.08.2000 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My daughter Thutharsini was the most studious of all my children. 
She was a very decent girl. Our family is poor but I educated her till 
Advance Level. At that time, she was studying in Puthukudiyiruppu 
Mahavidyalayam. She asked permission to attend a leadership 
workshop. First I refused but later I permitted her to attend because 
all of her friends and other school students were also to attending the 
workshop. On 14 August 2006, at 7.30 am the Kfir fighter jets were 
attacking Puthukudiyiruppu. We thought our daughter would be safe 
with the other girls. But later they said the location where my 
daughter was attending the workshop was targeted. Then we went to 
hospital to find out about my daughter. We could only see her dead 
body at the hospital. We had big hopes to see her achieve a lot in the 
future even though we are a poor family. 
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45. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Markupillai Kelan Suthajini 
 Address: Unnapulavu, Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithuvu Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  14.07.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 P Markupillai Father Fishing 13.07.1953 
02 Markupillai Lankanayaki Mother Home maker 04.07.1960 
03 Markupillai Jeyasuman Brother Fishing 20.09.1981 

04 Markupillai Jeyasutharsan Brother Student 05.02.1986 
05 Markupillai Jeyasulaksan Brother Student 24.01.1987 
06 Markupillai Kelan Suthajini Victim Student 14.07.1988 

 

Account from a relative:  
Causin (Polinamayoori):  

Kelan Suthajini is my husband Jeyasuman’s sister. She was studying 
GCE Advance Level at Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam. She went to 
Vallipunam complex to attend a leadership workshop. Then on 14 
August 2006, at 7.30 am the Kfir fighter jets attacked 
Puthukudiyiruppu. After the attack my husband went to find out 
about the situation. He knew that the Senchcholai complex was under 
attack by the Kfir fighter jets. He went there and found that she was 
admitted to the Kilinochchi hospital.  Then he left to the hospital. 
But, she had died. She was injured in her face and her left leg was 
severed from the body. The government deliberately killed her in her 
teenage although she could have achieved a lot.  
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46. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Baranthaman Kalaipiriya   
 Address: Temple settlement PTK  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  23.09.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Bathmanathan Father Fishing 30.06.1961 
02 Bathmanathan Vasanthakumar Mother Home maker 01.03.1968 
03 Bathmanathan Kalaipiriya Victim Student 23.091988 

04 Bathmanathan Sasipiriya Sister Bathmanathan 12.10.1994 
05 Bathmanathan Mathula Sister Bathmanathan 29.10.2002 

 
Account from a relative:  
Father:  

Kalaipriya is my eldest daughter. She is very intelligent. She was 
studying GCE Advanced Level in Mullaithivu Semmalai 
Mahavidyalayam. I did my best to educate her. She went to 
Senchcholai complex to attend a Leadership workshop. There were 
hundreds of girls gathered for the workshop. On 14 August 2006 the 
Sri Lankan Kfirs attacked the location. After half an hour of the 
attack, we knew that the location where my daughter was attending 
the workshop with other hundred of students was the target. At last 
we heard that she was killed by the attack.  There were big injuries to 
her waist area. She should have been in a good position in her future 
and she should have lived longer with us but they killed her at such a 
young age. 
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47. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Sivanantham Thivja 
 Address: Vannankulam Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam 
 DOB:  30.05.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:   

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 

01 T Sivanantharasa Father Fishing 22.06.1963 
02 Sivanantharasa Merithiresha Mother Home maker 06.07.1967 

03 Sivanantharasa Thivja Victim Student 30.05.1988 

04 Sivanantharasa Thivananth Brother Student 23.07.1990 
05 Sivanantharasa Sinthuja Sister Student 06.07.1996 

06 Sivanantharasa Sinthujan Brother Student 28.07.1999 
 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My daughter Thivya was studying in Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam. 
School administration called her to attend a leadership workshop. On 
the fourth day of the workshop, my daughter died in a Kfir attack. 
Soon after I heard about the incident I left to search for my daughter. 
She was not there. I thought, suppose she was injured in that attack, 
she would have been taken to the hospital. So I went to 
Puthukudiyiruppu hospital to search for her.  There my daughter was 
laid down as a dead body. She was badly injured in her stomach. The 
Sri Lankan government killed my eldest daughter. Now we feel that 
we have lost our life.  
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48. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Sivasubramaniyam Vadsalameri 
 Address: Manatkudiyiruppu, Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam 
 DOB: 20.11.1986 
 Age (then): 20 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 S Sivasubramaniyam Father Fishing 10.10.1957 

02 Sivasubramaniyam Ladsumi  Mother Home maker 11.02.1957 

03 Sivasubramaniyam Arulthas Brother Student 03.09.1983 
04 Sivasubramaniyam Gnanathas Brother Student 02.03.1985 
05 Sivasubramaniyam Vadsalameri Victim Student 20.11.1986 
06 Sivasubramaniyam Astalameri Sister Student 14.02.1989 
07 Sivasubramaniyam Archunameri Sister Student 01.12.1990 

 
Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

My daughter Vadsalameri is my third daughter. She was only 20 
years old when she died. She couldn’t finish even her studies. When 
she was studying in Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam, on 10 August 
2006 she went to attend a leadership workshop in Senchcholai 
complex. After four days, we heard that the Kfir attacked the 
Senchcholai complex.  Immediately I left to see my daughter. My 
elder son stopped me on the road and said my daughter returned 
home safely and he picked me up to our home. After we arrived at 
our home he said that Vadsala was also killed by the Kfir attack. The 
evening, at about 6.00pm they brought her dead body to home. She 
was brutally injured in her stomach. The government killed daughter 
intentionally. 
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49. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thanapalasingam Pakkeraji  
 Address: Mullivaikal west   
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  02.02.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

  
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 R Thanabalasingam Father Farming 17.09.1956 
02 Thanabalasingam Thankarani Mother Home maker 19.05.1960 
03 Thanabalasingam Sutharsan Brother Teacher 10.04.1979 
04 Thanabalasingam Suvarna Sister Deid  26.07.1981 
05 Thanabalasingam Suvarnan Brother Faring 22.08.1984 
06 Thanabalasingam Pakeeraji Victim Student 02.02.1987 

 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

Pakeeraji is my youngest daughter. She was following GCE 
Advanced Level in Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam. One day she went 
to attend a leadership workshop. Although I was not keen to send her 
to the workshop I agreed because I did not want to be an obstacle to 
her getting some training. On 14 August 2006, morning, she was 
killed on the spot when the Kfir attacked the location. Her uncle 
brought her dead body from Puthukkudiyiruppu hospital. She was 
injured in her head and neck. My child would have achieved great 
things but this Sri Lankan government killed her in vain.  
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50. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Vivekananthan Thadsajini 
 Address: 10th ward Puthukudiyiruppu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Kumulamunai M.V  
 DOB:  31.01.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 K Vivekananthan  Father Deid 15.09.1955 

02 Vivekananthan Kamalathevi Mother Home maker 09.06.1958 

03 Vivekananthan Thileepan Brother Student 25.04.1983 

04 Vivekananthan Thadsajini Victim Student 31.01.1988 

05 Vivekananthan Thalsan Brother Student 23.07.1989 
 

Account from a relative:  
Mother:  

She is my only daughter. She was the apple of my eye. I faced many 
difficulties to educate her without my husband. She was studying in 
Kumulamunai Mahavidyalayam. On a Thursday she left home to 
attend a workshop. On the fourth day, on 14 August 2006, Monday 
morning, it was about 7.00pm the Sri Lankan air forces’ Kfir attacked 
the Vallipunam area. After 10.00am, we knew that the Kfir attacked 
the Senchcholai complex and many girls were killed. Immediately I 
left to my mother’s home in Puthukudiyiruppu and went to all 
hospitals with my sister’s husband. At last we went to Kilinochchi 
hospital. We could see only her dead body. She was injured in her 
head. This Mahinda government deliberately killed our school girls.  

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 177 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Affidavit 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 178 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Coroner’s Report 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 179 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

51. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Thanikasalam Thanusa  
 Address: Kallappadu Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullaithivu Mahavidyalayam   
 DOB:  02.12.1987 
 Age (then): 19 
 Marital status: Single 

 
Family details:  

No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 

01 R Thanikasalam  Father Fishing 20.03.1965 
02 Thanikasalam Thanaladshumi Mother Home maker 16.08.1965 
03 Thanikasalam Thanusa Victim Student 02.12.1987 

04 Thanikasalam Thanuraj Brother Student 08.03.1992 
 

Account from a relative:  
Father:  

My daughter Thanusa was only 19 years old when she was killed. 
She should have lived a lot longer. She was very clever in her studies 
and sports. She was very polite girl. She was studying in Mullaithivu 
Mahavidyalayam. There she was following GCE Advance Level. She 
went to attend a workshop. On 14 August 2006, the Kfir fighter jets 
attacked the workshop complex. There was no place in her body 
without injury. Soon after I knew that the Kfir attacked the location, I 
went to Vallipunam. She was not there. Then I searched her in every 
hospital. I couldn’t find her. It was 6.00pm, I thought she might 
return home safely and walked towards our home. It was dark. I 
entered my home. My relatives and neighbous were gathered in our 
home. I entered inside. My daughter was lying there as a dead body 
in a coffin. What can I say about this government? It is determined to 
wipe out the Tamils. Is it going to make an exception to the school 
girls?  
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52. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Sivamoorthi Karthikajini  
 Address: Vallipunam Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Mullai. Udayarkaddu M.V   
 DOB:  13.02.1988 
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 

 
 
 
53. Details of the victim: 

 Full name:  Jesina 
 Address: Vallipunam Mullaithivu  
 Occupation: Student 
 School: Visuvamadu Maha vidyalayam   
 DOB:   
 Age (then): 18 
 Marital status: Single 
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Details of the staffs who were killed 
54. Details of the victim: 

 Full name: Anthonipillai Solaman Singarasa  
 Address: 10th Ward Puthukudiyiruppu  
 Occupation: Staff 
 Working Place:Vallipunam Senchcholai   Complex 
 DOB:  20.06.1949 
 Age (then): 58 
 Marital status: Married 

 
Family Details: 

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Anthonipillai Solaman Singarasa Victim Labour 20.06.1949 
02 Solaman Singarasa Rosamma Wife Home maker 01.09.1958 
03 Solaman Singarasa Dalsika Daughter Home maker 30.04.1982 
04 Solaman Singarasa Antonyraj Son Labour 15.09.1986 
05 Solaman Singarasa Jeyanthini Daughter Student 23.11.1994 
06 Solaman Singarasa Jeyanthan Son Student 15.01.1992 
07 Solaman Singarasa Nirojan Son Student 07.01.1993 
08 Solaman Singarasa Dilaxan Son Student 23.11.1994 
09 Solaman Singarasa Niroja Daughter Student 19.02.2001 
10 Solaman Singarasa Nirojan Son Student 23.11.2002 

 

Account from a relative:  
Wife:  

My husband Solaman Singarasa is very kind with all. We enjoyed our 
life since we got married. We have eight children. He was the bread 
winner for our family. He worked for daily wages. He was working 
in Senchcholai complex as a cook. On 14 August 2006, Kfir attacked 
the Vallipunam complex. I knew at about 8.00am that the 
Senchcholai complex was targeted by the Kfirs. Our neighbours said 
that the injured girls were being taking to the Puthukudiyiruppu 
hospital. I went to the hospital. I searched him in the wards. He was 
not there. I went to the site where the dead bodies were kept for 
identification. My husband’s body was there. At the time I felt that I 
lost every think when I saw my husband’s dead body. He was injured 
around his waist and right leg. I lost him. Now I’m suffering a lot 
with my eight children.  



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 185 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Affidavit 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 186 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Coroner’s Report 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 187 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

Certificate of Death 

 



 Vallipunam school girls’ massacre  
 

Page 188 Report by NESOHR 
Information Collected by SNE 

55. Details of the victim: 
 Full name: Santhirasekaram Vijayakumari 
 Address: Santhapuram Kilinochchi  
 Occupation: Staff 
 Working Place: Vallipunam Senchcholai Complex 
 DOB:  23.07.1979 
 Age (then): 27 
 Marital status: Married 

 
Family Details:  

 
No Name Relationship Occupation DOB 
01 Subramaniyam Santhiraselkaram Hasband Not with the 

Family 
Age 29  

02 Santhiraselkaram Vijayakumari Victim Labour 23.07.1979 

03 Santhiraselkaram Dayalan Son  22.11.2001 
04 Santhiraselkaram Menakan  Son  13.06.2005 

 

Account from a relative:  
Father:  

My daughter Vijeya is a mother of two children. Her husband left her 
when she was pregnant to her 2nd son. After he left, Vijeya and her 
two sons were living with me. After she delivered her second son, she 
started to work as a cook. She was working as a cook in the 
Senchcholai complex. On 14 August 2006 she was killed when the 
Kfirs attacked the complex. She was injured in her neck. She died on 
the spot. Now her two children are living with me. They don’t know 
that their mother was killed. They ask me, “ Thaththa (Grand father) 
where is our mother?”. What can I say to them, how can I explain her 
death. How long I can say to them that she went to work and would 
return home. When is this government going to give a peaceful life to 
the Tamils? 
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